%,e*“ UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
7 A% % REGION 4

3 A SAM NUNN

%, & ATLANTA PEDERAL CENTER

5 FORSYTH STREET
ATLANTA GEORGEA 3032960

'APR 21 201

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. Wayne Chandler

Southern industrial Chemiculs, g
1450 Marteua Boulevard, Northwest
Atlanta, Ugorgia 30313

SUBIFCT:  Southern Industrisl Chemicals, Ine,
Consent Agreement ond Final Order
Docket No. LPCRA-04-2011-2045(b)

Dear Me. Chandler:

Enclosed please Nind an oxceuted copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order
(CAFQ) that resolves the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986
{HPURA) matter {Docket No. EPCRA-04-201 1.2043(b}) involving Southern Industrial
Chemicals, Ing. The CAFO way tiled with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 40 CER,
Part 22 and became effective on the dute ol the tiling,

Also enclosed, pleuse find a copy of the “Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrants” Duty to Disclose Environmental .egal Proceedings.” This document puts you on
notice of your potential duty 1w lisclose to the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) any
environmental enforcemeiit actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPAY, If
you have any questions with regiwds to the SECs environmental disclosure requirements, you
may refer (o the contact phone pumber at 1he bottorm of the SEC Natice,

If you have any quo i« please cult Ms, Deanne (rant at (304) 562-9291.
Sincerely,

(e e

Caren B, Falgoner, Chigt
EPCRA Enforcement Section

Esnciosures
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 4 , he
IN THE MATTER OF: } -
Sauthern Industrial Chemicals, Inc ; Docket Number: EE?CR&M-Z{)I E—E{}fi?}{b) y
Respondent. ;;
CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER
[. Nature pf the Action
L This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 325 of the Emergency

Planning and Community Right-to-Kaow Act (EPCRA). 42 U.S.C. § 11045, and pursuant o the
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and
the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated Rules), codificd at 40
(.F.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management
Division, Region 4, United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent is
Southern Indusirial Chemiceals, Inc.

2, {ompiainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and desire to resclve this matter and settie the allegations
described herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or
testimony, the muaking of any argiment, or the adjudication of any 1ssue by this matter, snd in
accordance with 40 C F.R. 85§ 22.13(h) and 22, 18(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order
{CAFO) will simultaneously commence and conchide this matter,

1. Preliminary Statements

3 The authority to take action ursder Section 3283 of EPCRA, 42 11.8.C. § 11045, is
vested in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this anthority
under EPCRA o the Regional Administrators by EPA Delegation 22-3-A, dated May 11, 1994,
The Regional Administrator, Regton 4, has redelegated this authority to the Director, Alr,
Pesticides and Toxics Managoment Division, by EPA Region 4 Delegation 22-3-A, dated
November 8, 1994, Pursuant (o that delegation, the Director of the Alr, Pesticides and Toxics
Management Division has the authority to commence an enforcement action as the Complainant
1 this matter.

4. Respondent is Southern Industrial Chemicals, Inc., a corporation doing business
in the State of Georgia,

5. Respondent i< a "person” as defined in Scotion 329(7) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C.
$ 11049(7).



6. Respondent owns and operates a “facility” as that icrm is defined by Section
32904 of EPCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 11049(4),

7. Respondent's facility is located at 1430 Martetta Boulevard, Northwest, Atlanta,
Georgia 30318,

11 EPA's Allegations of Violations

. Section 312 of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11022, und the regulations found at
40 C.FR. Part 370, provide that the owner or operator of s facility that is required o prepare or
have available a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for hazardous chemicals under the
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 {OSHA} and regulations promuigated under that
Act, shall submit 1o the Local Emergency Planning Comaittee (LEPC), the State Emergency
Response Conmnission (SERC), and the fire department with jurisdiction over the facility, on or
before March 1 annually, a completed emergency and hazardous chemical inveatory form (Tier T
or Tier 1) as described in 40 C.E.R. Part 370, containing the information required by that partt for
hazardous chemicals present at the facility at any one thine ia the calendar year in amounts equal
to or greater than 10,000 pounds and containing the information required by that part for
extremely hazardous substances {EHS) present at the facility at any one time in amounts equal 1o
or greater than the threshold planning quantity (TPQ) or 500 pounds, whichever is less,

Q. At some time during the calendar years of 2009, and 2007, sulfuric acid was
present at the facility o aa amount equal to or greater than 306 pounds.

10, Sulfuric acid is an "extremely hazardous substance” as definesd under Section
329(3) of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 1104%(3), for which Respondent is required to prepare or have
available an MSDS under OSHA at its facility.

i1, Respondent failed to submit a completed Emergency and Hazardous Chemical
fnventory Form for sulturic acid te the SERC, the LEPC, and the fire department with
junisdiction over the factlity for calendar years 2009, and 2007, by March 1 of the following
year,

12, Respondent violated the reporting requircments of Section 312 of EPCRA,
42 U.S.C. § 11022, at its faciiity for calendar years 2009, and 2007 and is therefore subject to
the assessnient of ¢ivil penalties under Section 323 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11043,

3. Pugsuant to Section 325(¢) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), and 48 C.F.R. Pant
19, EPA may agsess a civil penaity of ot more than $37,500 for each violation of Section 312
that occurred after January 12, 2009, Each day a violation of Section 312 continues constitutes a
separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 325(¢) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), may
be assessed by Administrative Order,

Trb



14, For the purposes of this CAF(Q), Respondent admits the jurisdictional aliegations
set out above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above,

15, Respondent waives any right 1o contest the allegations and its right to appeal the
proposed final order accumpanying the Consent Agreemont.

16.  Rospondent consents to the assessmont of and agrees to pay the civil penalty as
set forth in this CAFQL

17.  Respondent certiftes that as of the date of its execution of this CAFO, it is in
compliance with all relovant requirements of EPCRA at the facility.

18, Compliaosce with this CAFO shall resolve the allegarions of viclations comtained
hergin, This CAFQ shall not otherwise affect any lability of Respondent 10 the United States
other than as expressed herein, Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an
enforcoment action against Respordent for a violution of any federal or state statute, regulation
or permit; {0 initiate an action [or imyninent and substantial cadangernient; o o pursue critsinal
enforcement.

19, Complainant and Respondent agree fo setile this matter by their execution of this
CAFQ. The parties agree that the settlernent of this mateer s in the public interest and thar this
CAFOQ is consistent with the applicable requirements of EPCRAL

V. Final OQrder
20.  Respondent shall pay an EPCRA ¢ivil peénalty of FOURTEEN THGOUSAND
DOLLARS (314,000, plus $76.00 in interest for the EPCRA violations, which shall be paid in
twelve (12) consecutive monthly payments, as follows, with the first payment of $1,173.00 to be
paid withins 30 days of receipt of the ratified CAFO;

1* payment due 30 days $L,173.00
2‘”‘1 payment due 60 days $1,173.00
3" payment due 90 days $51.173.00
4™ payment due 120 days $1,173.00
5'** payment due 150 days $1,173.00
6" , payment due 180 days $1.173.00
7% payment due 210 days $1.173.00
#* payment due 240 days $1,173.00
gt faymmt due 270 days $1.173.00
payment due 300 duays $1.173.00

1“’ payment due 330 days $1,173.00
22&‘ payment due 360 days 31.173.00


http:S1.l73.00
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21, Respondent shall pay the EPCRA penalty by forwarding a casher’s or certified
check payahle to "Treasurer, United States of Amcrica,” to ong of the following addresses:

BY MAIL BY QVERNIGHT

LS, Environmental Protection Agency 118, Bank

Fines and Penalties Attention: Natalic Pearson {314} 4184087
Cincinnati Finance Center 1043 Convention Plaza

P.O. Box 979077 Mail Statton SL-MO-C2GL

St. Louis, Missouri 631%97.9000 St. Louts, Missouri 83101

The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO,

22, Atthe time of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of ench check, and
following each payment a written statement that payment has been made in accordance with this
CAFO, to the following persons at the following addresses:

Regional Hearing Clerk
V.8, EPA, Region 4

81 Forsyth Street, S.W.
Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Deanne D, Grant

U.S.EPA, Region 4

Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division
61 Forsyth Street, S W,

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Sanndi Wilson

118 EPA, Region 4

Office of Environmental Accountability
&1 Forsyth Suger, S W,

Atlarta, Georgia 30303

23, Fuor the purposes of state and federa! income taxes, Respondent shall not be
entiticd, and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made
pursuant to this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall
constituie a violation of this CAFO.

24.  If Responident fatls to make one of the installment payiments in accordance with
the schedule set forth above, and if such payment is not made within 30 days alter the due date,
then payment plus all subsequent payments (the entire unpaid balance} and all acorucd interest
shall become immediately due and payable on the 31st day from such due date. In addition,
Respondent shall be lable for and shall pay administrative handling charges and late payment
penalty charges a$ desoribed below in the ovent of any such tailure or default,



25, Further, if Respondent fails to pay the instaliment payments in accordance with
the schedule set forth above, EPA may refer the debt (o a collection agency, a credit reporting
agency, or 1o the Deparument of Justice for filing of 2 collection action in the appropriate United
States District Court. In any such collection action, the validity, amount, and appropriateness of
the assessed penalty and of this CAFO shali net be subject to review,

26. Notwithstanding Respondent'’s agreement 1o pay the assessed civil penalty in
accordance with the installment schedule set forth above, Respondent may pay the entire civil
penalty of $14,000 for the EPCRA violations within thnrty (30} calendar days after the dute on
which a copy of this CAFO is mailed or hand-delivered 1o Respondent and, thereby, avoid the
payment of interest pursuant 1o 40 CFR. § 13.11{a). In addition, Respondent may, at any fime
after commencement of payments under the installment schedule, clect to pay the entire principal
halance remaining, together with interest accrued up 10 the date of such full payment,

27. Pursuant 10 31 USC. § 3717 and 40 CER. § 13,11, EPA is entitled (0 assess
interest and penalties on debts owed to the United States and 2 charge to cover the cost of
processing and handling a delinguent claim. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(a), interest on
any civil penalty assessed in a CAFD begins to acenie on the date that a copy of the CAFO is
mailed or hand-delivered to the Respondent. However, EPA will not seek to recover inierest on
any amount of such civil penalty that is paid within thirty (30} calendar days ufter the date on
which such interest begins to agcrue. Interest will be assessed at the rate of the Unmited States
Treasury tax and loan rate in accordance with 40 CF.K. § 13.11{2). A charge will also be
assessed to cover the admunisirative costs, both direct and indirect, of overdue debts, In addition,
a late payment penalty charge shall be applied on any principal amount not paid within 90 days
of the due date.

28 Complainant and Respondent shall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this
matier,

29, Thiy CAFG shall be binding upon the Respondent, s successors and assigns.

30, The following individual is authorized o receive service for EPA in this
provieding:

Caron B. Falconer

LS, EPA, Region 4

Air, Pesticides & Toxic Management Diviston
81 Forsyth Strect, S.W,

Atlanta, GA 30303

(404) 362-8451

3. Each undersigned representative of the pasties to this CAFO certifies that he or
she iy fully suthorized by the party represented w enter into this CAFO and legally bind that
party o it.



VI. Effective Daig

32, The effective daw of this CAFO shall be the date upon wiiich the CAFQ is filed
with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO:

Southern Industriy Che ‘a:ais,? Inc.

By: 20 O, Signatured Date: zf Z {

Namg; \.«Q&-v 2, ‘7 CM&A[Q v {Typed or Printed)
Title: ?T €5y 5 € 7 + {Typed or Printed)

(SRS Emimmnemai Protectios Agm{:y

#¥? Date: ;gf ”

Bevariy H. Baqucr ii‘}trz:cmr
Alr, Pesticides & Toxics

Management Division
Region 4

+h .
APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this_0 ___ day of %@_,_L 2011

i

Susan B. Schub
Regional Judicial Officer



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hercby certify that [ have this day served 2 true and correct copy of the foregoing

Inc., Bocket Number: EPCRA-04-2011-2045(b), on the parties listed below in the

muanner indicated:

Caron B. Falconer {Via EPA’s intcrnad mail)
U.S. EPA, Region 4

Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division

61 Forsyih Street

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Raobert Caplan {Via EPA’s intemnal mail)
UL.S. EPA, Region 4

Office of Environmental Accountability

61 Forsyth Street

Atianta, Georgia 30303

Waynie Chandler {¥ia Cortified Mail - Retum Receipt
Scuthern Industrial Chemicals, fnc, Requested)

14350 Marietta Boulevard, Northwest

Atlamta, Georgin 36318

RN T
med-alll N\ a0 000

Patricia A. Bullock, Regional Hearing Clerk
United States Environmental

Protection Agency, Region 4

Atlanta Federal Center

&1 Forsyth Street, S.W.

Atiunta, GA 30303

{(404) SH2-A511



10 BE COMPLETED BY THE ORIGINATING OFFICE:

{Attach 2 copy of the final order and (ravsmitial letter tn Deferdlant/Respondent / /
12
Ml’m*uoﬁﬁmbpsaundi Wilson on ‘[ )J/ {
(Name} {Date)
inthe Hegion 4, DRE, GFA " [464] 5629504
{Office} (Telephone Nuanber)
Non.SF Jodicial Order/Consent Desren E] Administrative Ovder/Consent Agrecmt
USAQ COLLECTS FMO COLLECTS PAYMENT
Overvight Billing - Cost Package
SF Judicial Order/Conment Decrew D Bent with bill P
O} COLLECTS

:l Nt sens with bilk

(7] Otter Beceivabe 7 et g o ko ot et
I:] “This is an orighost debe E] This is 3 modification
PAYEE: Sevtheiny Tecitriod Hlumpents e

(Nawoe of perssa and/or Comrany/Municipaiity maldeg the payuent)

The Totsl Doitsr Amoutt of the Hacefvable: § J”‘[’?é N S 2
(¥ instailments, stfack schedulé of amounts and respective due datas, See Othver zide of iz form)

The Cuse Docket Nasber: __EPC A0 3411 ’glt?‘i?’{‘?{é)

The Sitz Speciflc Superfund Account Number:

The Designated Ragionad/Meadyuarters Programn Offfce:

The TFME Accounts Receivahle Contrul Number ix: Date

H you Bave any questions, please call: | _of the Financial Management Section ats

DISTRINL 1T
A JUDICIAL OROERS: Copies of thi orm wilk sn sitached copy of the frowt page of the FINAL JUDICTAL ORDER
shvondd e romibedt ta:
L Debt Tracking Officer ;A Originutiog (4fice (AL
Enviroumensi Enferceownt Section L R Desigrated Prograc (itice

F.O. Bex 1511, Wenjonin Frankio Sl
Washimglon, D.C. 18044

ATIVE OUDERS: Cophex of this form with an anached copy of the froat page of the A dusinisirative Ovder should be te:

1. Originating Oifiex 3 fusignaied Program {Hfice
o Regional Hering Ok 4. Regiovnt Counsel (EAD)



